: Final Order No. DOH-05-1731- £6T -MQA
FILED DATE -_{D- [& 1
Department of Health

; By: Ae;uaa— ﬁ\okﬁ#h.

STATE OF FLORIDA \ ' Deputy Agency Clerk
BOARD OF MEDICINE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH,

Petitioner,

vs. .DOH CASE NO.: 2004-20974
- ' ' LICENSE NO.: ME0O043643

MARIA “ANNE” KIRKMAN, M.D.,
A.K.A.

MARIA “ANNE” KIRKMAN-CAMPBELL,.M.D.,

Respondent .

/

FINAL ORDER
THIS CAUSE came before the BOARD OF MEDICINE (Board)
pursuant to Sections 120.569 and 120.57(2), Florida Statutes, on

- October 7, 2005, in Orlando, Florida, for consideration of the
Administrative Complaint (attached hereto as Exhibit A) in the
above-styled cause pursuant to Respondent’s Election of‘Rights.
At the hearing, Petitioner was represented by Denise O’'Brien,
Assistant General Counsel. Respondent was not present énd was
not represented by counsel. The facts are not in dispute.

Upon consideration, it is ORDERED: |

1. The allegations of fact set forth in the Administrative
Complaint are approved and adopted and incorporated herein by
reference as the findings of fact by the Board.

" 2. The conclusions of law alleged and set' forth in the.

Administrative Complaint are approved and adopted and

incorporated herein by reference as the conclusions of law by the

Board.




3. The violatibns set forth warrant disciplinary action by
the Board. 'THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND ADJUDGED:

Respondent’s license to practice medicine in the State of
Florida is hereby REVOKED.

RULING ON AMENDED MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS

The Board reviewed the Petitioner’s Amended Motion to Assess
Costs and imposes the costs associated with this case in the
amount of $2,490.70.. Said costs are to be paid within 30 days
from the date this Final Order is filed.

(NOTE: SEE ATTACHMENT “A” FOR STANDARD TERMS APPLICABLE TO
ALL FINAL ORDERS. UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED BY FINAL ORDER,.
THE STANDARD TERMS SET FORTH THE REQUIREMENTS FOR PERFORMANCE: OF
ALL PENALTIES CONTAINED IN THIS FINAL ORDER.) ,

This Final Order shall take effect upon being filed with the

Clerk of the Department of Health.

DONE AND ORDERED this /7 day of XTOLE/_,

2005.

BOARD OF MEDICINE

]

Larry Pherson, Jr. Execuf&v%/blrector
for La rie K. Dav1es, M.D., Chair

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW

A PARTY WHO IS ADVERSELY AFFECTED BY THIS FINAL ORDER IS
ENTITLED TO JUDICIAL REVIEW PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.68, FLORIDA
STATUTES. REVIEW PROCEEDINGS ARE GOVERNED BY THE FLORIDA RULES OF
APPELLATE PROCEDURE. SUCH PROCEEDINGS ARE COMMENCED BY FILING

2
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ONE COPY OF A NOTICE OF APPEAL WITH THE AGENCY CLERK OF THE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND A SECOND COPY, ACCOMPANIED BY FILING
FEES PRESCRIBED BY LAW, WITH THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, FIRST
DISTRICT, OR WITH THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN THE APPELLATE
DISTRICT WHERE THE PARTY RESIDES. THE NOTICE OF APPEAL MUST BE
FILED WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS OF RENDITION OF THE ORDER TO BE
REVIEWED. '

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct‘copy of the
foregoing Final Order has been provided by U.S. Mail to ANNE
KIRKMAN, M.D., a.k.a. MARIA ANNE KIRKMAN-CAMPBELL, M.D., Federal
Prison Camp, Post Office Box 7006, Marianna,-?lorida 32446-7006;
and by interoffice delivery to Denise O’Brien and Dana Baird,
Department-of Health, 4052 BaldVCypress Way,>Bin #C-65,

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 this \2 ) day of

OC3DBe v , 2005.

Deputy Agency Clerk

F:\Usexrs\ADMIN\NANCY\MED\ORD\October-2005\KirkmanINF.wpd



821

FILED

" DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
STATE OF FLORIDA v
DEPARTM:E)NT og HEALTH CO&% « MeKar
DATE, $-34-0C -
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH,
Petitioner,
V. - CASE NO. 2004-20974

Maria “Anne” Kirkman, a.k.a., ' : _
Maria “Anne” Kirkman-Campbell, M.D., B

Respondent.

/ .

AMENDED MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 456.072(4)

COMES NOW the Department of Health, by and through undersigned

counsel, and moves the Board of Medicine for the entry of a Final Order
assessing costs against the Respondent for the investigatiori and
prosecution of this case in accordance with Section 456.072(4), Florida
Statutes (2003). As grounds therefor, the Petitioner states the following:

1. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of Medicine

‘will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary action and will

~ enter a Final Order therein.

2. Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes (2003),! states as follows:

' Ch. 2003416, § 19, Laws of Fla,, effective September 15, 2003, amended Section 456.072‘(4), Florida Statutes
(2003), to include the underlined language.
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In addition to any other discipline imposed through final
order, or citation, entered on or after July 1, 2001,
pursuant to this section or discipline imposed through
final order, or citation, entered on or after July 1, 2001,
for a violation of any practice act, the board, or the
department when there is not board, shall assess costs
related to the investigation and prosecution of the case.
Such costs related to the investigation and prosecution
include, but are_not limited to, salaries and benefits of
personnel, costs related to the time spent by the attorney
and other personnel working on the case, and any other
expenses incurred by the department for the case. The
board, or the department when there is no board, shall
determine the amount of costs to be assessed after its
consideration of an affidavit of itemized costs and any
written objections thereto. . . .

3.  The investigation and prosecution of this case has resulted in
costs in the total amount of $2,490.70, based on the following itemized

statement of costs:

a. Total soft costs for Complaints $276.84

b. Total soft costs for Investigations $267.30

C. Total soft costs for Legal $1,901.06
Therefore, the Petitioner seeks an assessnient of costs against the
Respondent in the amount of $2,490.70, as evidenced in the attached
affidavit. (Exhibit A).

4. Should the Respondent file written objections to the

assessment of costs, within ten (10) days of the date_ of this motion,




specifying the grounds for the objections and the specific elements of the

costs to which the objections are made, the Petitioner requests that the

Board determine the amount of costs to be assessed based upon its
consideration of the afﬁdavit attached as Exhibit A and any timely-filed
written objections; | |

5. Pétitioner requests that the Board grant this motion énd assess
costs in the amount of $2,490.70 as supported by competent, substantial
evidence. This assessment of costs‘ is in addition to any other discipline
imposed by the Board and is in accordance with Sectioh 456.072(4),
Florida Statutes (2003). |

WHEREFORE, the Department of Health requests that thé .Bc.)ard of
Medicine enter a Final Ordel; assessing costs .against thé Res.pondent in t'h.e

amount of $2,490.70.

DATED this - 9\64’ _day of A{}'U}L | , 2005.

sistant General Counsel

DOH Prosecution Services Unit

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 '

Florida Bar # 0570788 '
(850) 414-8126 telephone (850)414-1989 fax
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY'CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing
Motion to Assess Costs has been provided to Respondent, Maria “Anne
Kirkman, a.k.a., Maria “Anne” Kirkrhan-Campbel!, M.D., Federal Prison
Camp, Post Office Box 7006, Marianna, Florida 32446-7006, by Certified
U.S. Mail this_ 6™ day of  Auust , 2005.

Wi

J./Blake Hunter
istant General Counsel

JBH/als
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AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF LEON:

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared JAMES R.
COOKSEY, who was sworn and states as follows:

1)
2)

3)

4)

.5)

6)

7

8)

My name is James R. Cooksey.

1 am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit

upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at
the Florida Department of Health (DOH).

| am a Operations Management Consultant for the Consumer Services
Unit for DOH. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints
against Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors, dentists}
nurses, respiratory therapists) are officially filed. | have beenin my
current job position for more than one year. My business address is
1580 Waldo Paimer Lane, Tallahassee, Florida 32308.

As a Operations Management Consultant, my job duties include
reviewing data in the Time Tracking System and verifying that the:
amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System is a computer
program which records and tracks DOH's costs regarding the

investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida health care .
licensees.

As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH
case number 2004-20974 (Department of Health v. Maria “"Anne”
Kirkman, M.D., a.k.a. Maria “Anne” Kirkman-Campbell, M.D.,) are two -
thousand four hundred ninety dollars and seventy cents ($2,490.70).

The costs for DOH case number 2004-20874 (Department of Health v..
Maria “Anne” Kirkman, M.D., a.k.a. Maria “Anne” Kirkman-Campbell,

M.D.) are summarized in Exhibit 1 (Cost Summary Report), which is
attached to this document.

The itemized costs and expenses for DOH case number 2004-20974
(Department of Health v. Maria “Anne” Kitkman, M.D., a.k.a. Maria
“Anne” Kirkman-Campbeli, M.D.) are detailed in Exhibit 2 (itemized

Cost Report and Itemized Expense Report and receipts), which is
attached to this document. '

The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to

laof2




826

keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g., investigators
and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time ’
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida
Board of Medicine, Fiorida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. if no Board or case can be
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas
established by the Department. (See the ltemized Cost Report)

9)

James R.'Cookéey, first being duly swom, states that he has read the

foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained
therein are true and correct to the best of his knowledge and belief. -

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT.
o N
es R. Cooksey, Affight

State of Florida
County of Leon

e
Sworn to and subscribed before me this - /3 day of

by James R. Cooksey, who is personally known to me.

L =
Notary Signature ()
SN, MARY RLWILSON
. o MY COMMISSION # 0D 313854
A EXPIRES: June 7, 2008
e i Bonged Theu Buet Noary Serrces
Name of Notary Printed

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public:

20f2

QIAL-\/';. 2005,
/7
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Page 1 of 1

Complaint Cost Summary
Complaint Number:200420974

- Complainant's Name: DOH/BD ACTION RPT (AL)

Subject's Name: MARIA KIRKMAN
L - ¥*x%% Cost to Date ****+

i Hours Costs |
|Complaint: ] 5.80| $276.84]
Investigation: ] 5,60} $267.30
Legal: 2590/  $1,901.06

Ehkhkichkkdksk ¥ e e de ¥y ek ok e ke

Sub Total: 37.30]  $2,445.20
Expenses to Date: ) $45.50|
Prior Amount: $0.00|
Total Costs to Date: . | $2,490.70

_http://mqaapps.doh.state.fl.us IRMOOTIMETR AK/CSDETL . ASP 7/14/2005
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ATTACHMENT A
STANDARD TERMS APPLICABLE TO ALL FINAL ORDERS

, - The following are the standérd terms applicable to all

1

Final Orders, including supervision and monitoring provisions

-applicable to licensees on probation.

A. COMPLIANCE WITH STATE AND FEDERAL LAWS AND RULES.

Respondent shéll compiy with all state and federall
statutes, rules and regulations pertaining to the practice
of medicine[ including Chapters 456,.458, 893, Florida
Statutes, and Rule Chapter 64B8, Florida Administrativé
.Code.- If Réspondent is subject to criminal probation,
, Réspondent'shall cbmply with all terms and conditions of

said criminal probation. i

B. PAYMENT OF FINES AND COSTS. Unléss otherQiSe directed by
| Final Ordér, all fines‘ahd cééts.sﬁéii'be.paiéwaHéhécﬁnéf.

money order made payable to the Board and sent to :
DOH/Client Services, P.0O. Box 6320, Tallahassee, Florida
32314-6320, hITHIN 30 DAYS OF THE FILING OF THE FINAL
ORDER. The Board/Compliance office does NOT have the
authority to change the terms of payment of any fine
imposed by the Board.

C. ADDRESSES. Respondent must keep current residence and

practice addresses on file with the Board. Respondent




shall notify the Compliance Office, in writing, within 10
days of any changes of those addreéses. .Furthermore,iif

the Respondent’s license is on probation, the Respondent

. shall notify the Compliance Office within 10 days in the

.event that Respondent leaves the active practice of

medicine in Florida.

CQMPLIANCE ADDRESS. Unless otherwise directed, all
reports, correspondence and inquiries shall be sent.to:
DOH, Client Services Unit, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #cC01,
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3251, Attn: Medical Compliance:

Officer.

. CONTINUITY OF PRACTICE

1. TOLLING PROVISIONS. In the event the Respondent leaves

the State of Florida for a period of 30 days or more or
otherwise does not or may not engage in the active préctice
of medicine in the State of‘Florida, then certain
provisions of the requirements in the Final Order shall be
tolled and shall remain in a tolled status until Respondent
returns to the active practice of medicine in the State of
Florida. Respondent shall notify the Compliance Officer 10
days prior to his/her return to practice in the State of

Florida. Unless otherwise set forth in the Final Order,

the following requirements and only the foliowing

requirements shall be tolled until the Respondent returns

[R)




to active practice:
a. The time period of probation shall be tolled.
b. The provisions regardihg supervision whether direct
or indirect by the monitor/supervisor, and required
reports from the monitor/supervisor shall be tolled.
c¢. The requirement for quality assurance review. of
Respondent’s practice shall.be tolled.
~d. Any provisions regardinglcommunity service shall be
_tolled.
e. Any reéuirements regérding léctures on the subject

of wrong-site surgery. '

2. ACTIVE PRACTICE. In the event that Respondent leaves

the active practice of medicine for a period of one year or

. more, the Respondent may be required to appear before the

Board and demonstrate the ability to practice medicine with
reasonable skill and safety to patients priorrﬁowfééﬁﬁiﬁéw
the practice of medicine in the State of Florida:F. :

COMMUNITY SERVICE AND CONTINUING EDUCATION UNITS..

Unless otherwise directed by Final Order, all commuhity
service requirements, continuing education units/courses
must be completed, and documentation of such completion
submitted to DOH/Client Services, at the addreés set fOrth'
in paragraph D., WITHIN ONE YEAR OF THE.DATE OF THE FINAL

ORDER.



1. DEFiNITION OF COMMUNITY SERVICE. QComhﬁnity
service” shall be defined as the delivery of medical
services directly to patients, or the deli&ery of
other volunteer-sef&ices to an entity which is. exempt .
from federal.taxation undér 26 U.S;C..s.-501(c)(3),‘
without fee or cost to the pétient or the enﬁity, for
the good of the people of the State of Florida.
Community service shall be performed outside the
physician’s regular practice setting.

2. CONTINUING EDUCATION. Continuing education imposed

by Final Order shall be in addition to those hours
required for.biennial renewal of licensure. TUﬁleSS'
otherwise‘approved by the Board or the'Chairpérson of
the Probation Committee, said continuing,edUcation'
coursés shall consist of a formal live 1e¢tufebf§rmat.

G. PROBATION TERMS. If probation was imposed by the Final

Order, the following provisions are applicable.

1. DEFINITIONS:

a. INDIRECT SUPERVISION is supervision by avménitdringv.
physician {(monitor), as set forth in the Final Order,
whose responsibilities are set by the‘Board. indireét
supervision does not require that the monitox practice

"on the same premises as the Respondent. However, the

monitor shall practice within a reasocnable geographic




broximity to Respohdent, which shall be within 20
miles unless otherwise approved by the Board and shall
be reédily available for consultation. The monitor
shall be board-certified in the Réspondent's specialty‘

area unless otherwise approved by the Board or its

designee.

b. DIRECT SUPERVISION is supervision by a supervising

»physician (supervisor), as set forth in the Final

Order, whose responsibilities are set by the Board.

Direct supervision requires that the supervisor and

 Respondent work in the same office. The supervisbr ‘

shall be board-certified in the Respondent’s specialty
area.unless otherwise approved by the Board or its
designee.

¢. PROBATION COMMITTEE or “Committee” are members of

the Board of Medicine designated byvthevéhéif&df”ﬁﬁé'”
Board to serve as the Probation Cémmittee. . '

2. REQUIRED SUPERVISION.

a. If the terms of the Final Order include indirect
monitoring of the licensee’s practice (monitoring) or
direct monitoring of the licensee’s practice

(supervision), the Respondent shall not practice

medicine without an approved monitor/supervisor, as

specified by the Final Order, unless otherwise ordered

th



by the Board.

b. The monitor/supervisor mﬁst be licensed under
:Chapter 458, florida Statutés; in good sténding; and
without restriction or limitationvon-his/her licénse.
In addition, - the Board or Committée méy reject any
proposed monitgr/supervisor on.the basis that.he/she
has previously been subject tofany disciplihary‘action
against his/her medical license in this or any otﬁer
jurisdiction, is currently under ipvestigation,'or is
the subject of a pending disciplinary action. The
monitor/supervisor mﬁst be actively engagsd in the
same or similar specialty area unless otherwise
approved by the Board or Committee and be practicing
within a reasonable distance_ofbthg Respondentfs
practice, a distance of no more than 20 miles_uniess
otherwise specifically provided.for in the'Fihéi
Order. The monitor/supervisor must not be é relative
or employee of the Respondent. The Boara, Com@ittee-'
or designee may also reject any proposed

monitor/supervisor for good cause shown. .

3. TEMPORARY APPROVAL. The Board confers authority

on the Chair of the Probation Committee to temporarily

approve Respondent’s monitor/supervisor. To obtain

this temporary approval, Respondent shall submit to




the Compliance Officer the name and curriculﬁm vitae
of the proposed monitor/supervisor. This information
shall be furnished to the Chair of the Probation
Committee by way of the Compliance Officer, within 48
hours after Respondent receives the Final»otder in
this matter. This information may be faxed to the

Compliance Officer at (850) 414-0864, or may be sent

_by,overnight mail to the COmpliance address as set

forth in paragraph D. above. . In order to provide time

for Respondent'’s proposed supervisory/monitoring

physician to be approved or disapproved by the Cﬂairb

.of the Probation Committee, Respondent shall be

‘allowed to practice medicine while approval is being

sought, but only for a period of five working days

after Respondent receives the Final Order. If

" Respondent’s superﬁisihg/ﬁohitéfingrphyéiéiéﬁhhaéwﬁbt“

been approved during that time frame, then Respoﬁdent
shall cease practicing until such time as the
superviéing/monitofing physician is temporarily
approved. 1In thé event that the proposed
monitoring/supervising physician is not approved, then
Respondent shall cease practicing immediétely. Should

Respondent’s monitoring/supervising physician be

~approved, said approval shall only remain in effect



until the next meeting of the Probationer’s. Committee.

Absent said approval, Respondent shall not practice

medicine until a monitoring/supervising physician is

approved. Temporary approval shall only remain in®
effect until the next meeting of the Probation
Committee.

4. FORMAL APPROVAL. Respondent shall have the

monitor/supervisor.with him/her at the first probation
appearance befére the Probation Committee. Pribr to
consideration of the monitor/supervisor by the
Committee, the Respondent_shall provide_the
monitor/supervisor a copy of the Administrative
Complaintvand'the Final Order in this case.

Respondent shall sub@it_a current curriculum vitae, a
description of current practice, and a letter agieeing
to serve from the proposed monitor/superﬁiéor to éhe
Compliance Officer no later than 21 feurteen days
before the Respondent’'s first scheduled érobatibn
appearance. - Respondent’s monitor/supervisor shall
also.appear beforebthe Probation Commitfee at such
tiﬁes as directed by_the Committee. It shall_be the'.
Respondent’s reéponSibility to’ensuré the appearance

of his/her monitor/supervisor as directed. Failure of

the monitor/supervisor to appear as directed shall




constitute a violation of the terms of the Final Order
and may subject the Respondent to additional
disciplinary action.

5. CHANGE IN MONITOR/SUPERVISOR. In the event that

‘Respondent’s monitor/supervisormis'unable or unwilliﬁg
to fulfill his/her responsibilities as a
monitor/supervisor as’described'above, the Respondent
shall immediatel? advise the Complianee Office of this
fect. Respondent shall immediately submit to the
Compliance Office the name ef altemporary
‘monitor/supervisor for comsideration. Resgondent\

shall not practice pending approval of this temporary

monitor/supervisor by the Chair of the Probation

Committee. Furthermore, RéSpoﬂdent shall make
arrangements with his/her temporary mon1tor/superv1sor
to appear before the Probatlon Commlttee at 1ts nExt
regularly scheduled meeting for consideration of the
monitor/supervisor by'the Committee. Respondent_shail
only practice uﬁder the supervision of the temporary
monitor/supervisor (approved by the Chair) until the
next regularly scheduled meeting of‘the probation
Committee whereat the issue of.the Committee'e
approval of the Respondent’s new meniter/supervisor

shall be addressed.




6. REPORTS.

a. If directed by Final Order, probation reports, in

affidavit form, shall be submitted by the Respondent

and shall contain the following:

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

(5)

(6)

Brief statement of why physician is on probation.
Practice location.
Describe current practice (type and composition).
Brief statement of compliance with probationary
terms.
Describe relationship with_ﬁonitoring/superVising
physician. | |

Advise Compliance Officer of any é?éblems
including office incident reports filed; loss or
restriction of hospital staff privileges; loss or
restriction of DEA registration; or any |
Medicare/Medicaid program exclusions,

restrictions or limitations.

. b. MONITOR/SUPERVISOR REPORTS. If directed by Final

Order, monitor/supervisor reports, in affidavit form

shall include the following:

(1)

(2)°

(3)

Brief statement of why physician is on probation.
Description of probationer’'s practice.
Brief statement of probationer’s compliance with

terms of probation.

10




(4)

Brief description of probationer's nelationship

with monitoring physician.

- (5) Detail any problems which may have arisen with

probationer.

7. INVESTIGATIVE REPORTS. Respbndent understands

that dﬁring the period of probation, at a minimum,
semi-annual investigative reports will be compiled
with the Department of Health concerning compliance
with thé terms and conditions of probation and the

rules and statutes regulating the practicé of

-medicine. : \

8. COSTS OF COMPLIANCE. Respondent shall pay all

costs necessary to comply with the terms of the Final

Order. Such costs include, but are not limited to,

the costs of preparation of.the investigative reports
detailing complianée with thémtérms of.ﬁﬁé“FiﬁéliJM.'”
Order, the cost of analysis of anyvblodd or.uriné
specimens submitted pursuant to the Final Order,-and.
administrative costs directly associated with
Respondent's probation. See Section 458.331(2),
Florida Statutes.

9. SUPERVISION OF PHYSICIAN ASSISTANTS AND/OR

ANESTHESTOLOGIST ASSISTANTS. - Respondent is

required to notify, in writing, any physician

11




assistaﬁt aﬁd/or anesthesiologist assistaﬁtkwhich the
' Probationer supervises, of his or her'probationé:y
status. A copy of said Qritten notification(s) shail
be submitted to the Board’s Compliance Officer within

10 days of entry of the Final Order.

_SUSPENSION:. In the event that a Respondent’s license

expires during the period that the license is suspendgd,
this action shall noﬁ relieve the Resppndent of the
responsibilityvto renew-;he license at the end of each
licensure period. If the Respondent fails to renew the
license at the end Qf any licensure period, ali normal
conditions and cbnsequences imposed by statute or.rule of

the Board for failure to timely and properly renew a’

license shall apply. Renewal of a suspended license during

the period of suspension shall not affect the Suspension of
the license and the suspension shall continue'uﬁtii all

requirements for reinstatement have been met.

RETURN OF LiCENSE. Any Final Order which suééehds a
liéense, revokes a license, or accepts a Respondent’s offer
to voluntarily relinquish his/her license shall require the
Respondent to return the license to the Department within |
30 days from the date the Final Order is filed. Thisishall
notlapply to instances wherée the Roard or a couft has

granted the Respondent a stay of the suspension.
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STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH,
PETITIONER,

v. | , CASE NO. 2004-20974

MARIA “ANNE” KIRKMAN, M.D., a.k.a |
MARIA “ANNE"” KIRKMAN-CAMPBELL, M.D.,

RESPONDENT.

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT
COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its
undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the
Board of Medicine against Respondent, Maria Kirkman, M.D., a.‘k.a Maria
Kirkman—CafnpbéIf, M.D., and in support thereof a!legés:
1.  Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the

practice of medicine pu'rsuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter .

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 458, Florida Statutes.

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a

licensed physician within the State. of Florida, having been issued license

number ME 43643.

3. Respondents address of record is 3103 Rickwood Street,

Rainbow City, Alabama 35906. Respondent’s last known address is
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 Registration Number 243 99-001, Quarters: SB, Federal Prison Camp, PO.

Box 7006, Marianna, Florida 32446-7006.

4. The Alabama Board -of Medical Examiners (“ABME”) is the
licensing authbrity regu}ating the practice of medicine in the State of
Alabama. |

5. .On or about August 29, 2003, Respondent was Chargéd in‘ an
twenty-one (21) count indictment, in case number CR-03-C0-0437-M in the
Unitéd States District Court for the Northern District of Alabama, Middle
Division, with tén (10) counts of us'm'g a scheme or fraud to obtain money
and property by means of false pretenses and docUmentation, in violation
of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341, 1346 and 2 and eleven (11)
counts of knowingly and willfully rnakihg and using, and causing to be

made and used false writing and document knowing it to contain a

. materially false, fictious and fraudulent statement and entry, in violation of

Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1001(a)(3) and 2.
6. The information alleged ‘that™ Respondent falsified

documentation elated to a study and drug trial to establish the safety and

. effectiveness of Ketek, a new antibiotic from Aventis Pharmaceuticals,

before it could be approved by the Federal Food and Drug Administration.
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2 On or ‘about March 25, 2004, Respondent pleaded guilty, in

case number CR-03-C0-0437-M in the United States District Court for the

‘Northern District of Alabama, Middle Division, to one (1) count of Fraud

and Swindles by Mail related to the dru.g‘trial of Ketek, in violation of Title

18, United States Code, Sectlons 1341- and 2.

8. ~'On or about March 25, 2004, Respondent was sentenced to

fifty-seven (57) months in prison; upon release from imprisonment,

‘Respondent will be placed on supervised release with conditions for a term

of thirty-six (36). months; and Respondent was ordered 'to pay a fine in the
amount of five hundred fiftY—se\}en thousand two hundred fifty-one dollars
and twenty-two cents ($557,251.22) and restitution in the amount of nine
nundred twenty-five thousand seven hundred seventy-four dollars and
sixty-one cents ($925,774.61). |

9. The crime tO which the Respondent was found guilty and
convicted is a crime that is directly related to the practice of medicine or to
the ability to pracfice medicine.

10. The qualities that are essential to the practice of medicine
include reliability, honesty, and good moral character. The crime of which
Respondent was found guolty and convicted demonstrates that Respondent

lacks these essential quahtxes By demonstratlng that Respondent lacks
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these - essential qualities, Respondent’s crime relates to the ability to

practice medicine by showing that she is not worthy to be entrusted with

the privileges and authority vested in those who are licensed to- practice

medicine. .

11. On or about March 24, 2004, Respondent‘ entered Ajmto a
Voluntary Surrender agreement with the ABME in which Respondent
voluntarily surrendered Iher ficense to practice mediéine in the State of
Alabama.

12. The Voluntary Surrender was entered into by Respondent iﬁ
anticipation of - administrative charges being filed against her jiceﬁse to
practice medicine by the ABME; tﬁus, the Voluntary Surrender coﬁstitutes
discipiinary action against the Respondent’s license to p'ractice‘ medicine in
the State of Alabama. |

COUNT ONE

13. Petitioner re-alleges and incorporates paragraphs one (1)

- through twelve (12) as if fully set forth herein.

14, Section 458.331(1)(b), Florida ‘Statutes (2003), provides that
having a license or the authority to practice medicine revoked, suspended,
or otherwise acted against by licensing authority of any jurisdiction

constitu{es grounds for disciplinary action by the Board of Medicine.
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Section 458.331(1)(), Florida Statutes (2003), further states that the
lic;ensing authority’s acceptance of a physician’s relinquishment of a license,
stipulation, consent order, or other settlement, offered in -reSponse to or in
antici'pation' of the 'ﬁliné of an administrative  charges against the
" physician’s license, shali be cohs_tru_ed.as action against thé physician’s
license.

15. .. The March 24, 2004 Voluntary Surrender entered into by the
Respondent i.n respohsé to the anticipation of administrative charges being
filed against Responden{:’s license by the ABME constitutes disciplinary
action against the-Respondent’s Alabama medical license. -

16. Based on the foregoi;wg, Respondent has violated Section
458.331(1)(b), Florida Statutes (2003), by having a license or the authority
to practice medicine revoked, suspended, or otherwise acted against,
including the dehial of licensure, by the licensing authority of any
jurisdiction.

COUNT TWO

17. Petitioner re-alleges ‘and incorporates paragraphs one (1)
throﬁgh twelve (12) as if fully set forth_ herein.

18. = Section 458.331(’1)(@, Florida Statutes (2003), provides that

being convicted or found guilty of, or entering a plea of nolo contendere to,
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regard.less of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which diract\y relates
to the practice of medicine or to the abmty to practice medicine constrtutes
grounds for disciplinary action by the Board of Medlcme

19. Respondents March 25, 2004 plea of guilty to mall fraud in the
United States District Court for the Northern District of Alabama Middie |
Division directly relates to her practice of medicine or to her ability 1o
practlce medlcme

20. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has .violated Section
458.331(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2003), by being convicted or found guilty
of, or entermg a.plea of nolo contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a
crime in any Junschct\on Wthh directly. relates to the practice of medicine or
to the ability to practice medicine.

- WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requesfs that the Board of.

~ Medicine enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties:

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent’s license, restriction of

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand,
placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of

fees billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the

Board deems appropriate.
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- PCP Members: Gus%a\/o leon,

SIGNED this 13){5 day of D’J,e«[u-

, 2004.

John O. Agwunobi, M.D., M.B.A., M.P.H.

ﬁre’W DeW of Health

: ﬁkake Hunter
FILED istant General Counsel
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH DOH Prosecution Services Unit
, TEPUTY CLERK 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65
CLERK “,w:tlw C»W ~ Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265
DATE__ 12-13-04 Florida Bar No. 8570788
‘ (850) 414-8126

(850) 414-1989 FAX

/ibh

PCP: ’De,uumb&r io, 2004

MDLChairpersom), Mammen Zac}uu-fak MDD, o»&JDVu

Beebi
Reviewed and approved by: E)Q_ﬁ_(initials)/o /¢ [Of (date)

Maria "“Anne” Kirkman, M.D., a.k.a Maria "Anne ” Kirkman-Campbell, DOH
Case No. 2004-20974
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NOTICE OF RIGHTS

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be
conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57,
Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified
representative, to present evidence and argument, to -call and
cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena
duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested.

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter.
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours. and costs,
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed.

Maria “Anne” Kirkman, M.D., a.k.a Maria "Anne” Kirkman-Campbel], DOH
Case No. 2004-20974 - '
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